Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Lleoliad: Cynulliad
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Dyddiad: National
Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2013 VAVSaSIS;”bly for

C7

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Bethan Davies
Clerc y Pwyllgor
029 2089 8120
PwyllgorCyllid@cymru.gov.uk

Agenda

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09:30)

2 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan Addysg Uwch
Cymru a Chyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru (09:30-10:45)
(Tudalennau 1 - 28)

FIN(4)-21-13 (papur 1)

FIN(4)-21-13 (papur 2)

Yr Athro John Hughes, Is-Ganghellor, Prifysgol Bangor

Amanda Wilkinson, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg Uwch Cymru

Ben Arnold, Cynghorwr Polisi, Addysg Uwch Cymru

Dr David Blaney, Prif Weithredwr, Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru (CCAUC)
Bethan Owen, Cyfarwyddwr Ymgysylltu Sefydliadol, Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch
Cymru (CCAUQ)

Celia Hunt, Cyfarwyddwr Sgiliau, Addysg a Chyllido, Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch
Cymru (CCAUQ)

(Egwyl 10:45-10:55)

3 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan Undeb

Cenedlaethol y Myfyrwyr (10:55-11:35) (Tudalennau 29 - 35)
FIN(4)-21-13 (papur 3)



Stephanie Lloyd, Llywydd Undeb Cenedlaethol y Myfyrwyr, Cymru
Keiron Rees, Swyddog Polisi a Materion Cyhoeddus, Undeb Cenedlaethol y Myfyrwyr,
Cymru

4 Papurau i’w nodi (11:35) (Tudalennau 36 - 38)

Cyllideb Ddrafft Comisiwn y Cynulliad 2014-15: Llythyr gan Angela Burns AC
(Tudalennau 39 - 44)
FIN(4)-21-13(ptn1)

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: (11:35)
Eitemau 6, 7 & 8

6 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Trafod y dystiolaeth a gafwyd
(11:40-11:50)

7 Bil Tai (Cymru) (11:50-12:05) (Tudalennau 45 - 56)
FIN(4)-21-13 (papur 4)

8 Ymateb Cychwynnol Llywodraeth y DU i Adroddiad Comisiwn Silk

Rhan 1 (12:05 - 12:20) (Tudalennau 57 - 71)
FIN(4)-21-13 (papur 5)



Higher
Education
Wales Cymru

1=

Eitem 2

Uwch

National Assembly for Wales

Finance Committee

Fin(4)-HEF04

Inquiry into Higher Education Funding

Evidence from Higher Education Wales

1. About Higher Education Wales

1.1.

Higher Education Wales (HEW) represents the interests of universities in Wales and
is a National Council of Universities UK. HEW’s Governing Council consists of the
Vice-Chancellors of all the universities in Wales and the Director of the Open
University in Wales.

2. Introduction

2.1.

We welcome the Finance Committee of the National Assembly for Wales’ inquiry
into the funding of higher education and provide the following comments in response
to the call for evidence. The Consultation Letter outlines four specific areas of
consultation which form the headings of our response below. The overarching
questions, identified on pages 1 and 2 of the Consultation Letter, have been
incorporated alongside the questions outlined in the appendix under each heading.
Before answering the specific questions, however, we make a number of general
comments about the unique contribution of universities to the Welsh economy and
society and the importance of higher education (HE) funding. Further comments
are contained in HEW’s response to call for evidence on the Welsh Government
Draft Budget proposals 2014-15, submitted to the Finance Committee on 13
September 2013."

3. General comments

3.1.

3.2.

We recognise that with the current budgetary settlements the Welsh Government
will have challenging decisions to make about where to prioritise its funding, and this
may become more challenging in the future. In weighing the requirements and
importance of higher education to both the Welsh economy and the people of Wales
the following factors should be considered in particular.

Universities in Wales are central to its economic future and to achieving the Welsh
Government’s ‘over-riding priorities’ of jobs and the economy, as identified in its
Programme for Government:

" Published on-line at: http://www.senedd.assemblywales.org/mglssueHistoryHome.aspx?11d=6470

Tudalen 1



3.3.

3.4.

. Universities are major suppliers of the skilled workforce in Wales. More than

10,000 students from Welsh universities entered employment in Wales within
six months of leaving in 2011/12 (i.e. around 62% of the 16,200 known to
have entered employment across the UK).

. Universities are major employers in their own right with over 16,000 full time

members of staff. After taking into account the ‘knock-on’ effects of jobs being
created in other industries linked to Welsh universities, recent research shows
that the total employment generated in Wales is just under 39,000 (over
43,000 across the UK).

. Universities also play an extremely important role in leveraging additional

resource into Wales, currently earning over £400m in much-needed export
earnings through overseas revenue and international students coming to
study in Wales?

. With a total turnover of over £1.3bn, universities have an estimated impact

of almost £2.6bn on Wales’ economy, with this figure reaching £3.6bn
once total off-campus spending by students is taken into account. Based
purely on patterns of expenditure, for every £100m that is invested in higher
education £103m is generated to the Welsh economy (a high ‘multiplier
effect’).*

There is a wide range of evidence to suggest that investment in universities will have
an impact on the economic growth and international competitiveness of Wales as a
whole. Countries with high levels of innovation on average tend to have a stronger
track record of investment in higher education and higher proportions of graduates in
their populations.® Long-run economic growth is above all determined by knowledge
accumulation and technological progress.® There are few sectors of the Welsh
economy with the capacity or scope to grow and generate export earnings as well as
higher education. As recognised by the Welsh Government the alternative economic
levers at its disposal are comparatively limited.”

Universities are also a catalyst for social mobility and continue to invest heavily in
ensuring that students from all backgrounds have access to higher education. An
undergraduate degree increases an individual’'s chance of employment and

2 Higher Education Statistical Agency (HESA), Destinations of Leavers from Higher Education
2011/12, HEIDI Report 2013.

® Kelly, McNicoll et al., The Economic Impact of Higher Education in Wales, June 2013,
commissioned by HEW.

* Ibid.
® Universities UK, Higher Education in Focus: Driving Economic Growth, 2011.

® OECD, The OECD Innovation Strategy - Getting a head start on tomorrow, 2010.
" Welsh Government, Programme for Government Annual Report 2012, p.3 & 6.

Tudalen 2



3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

increases marginal earnings by 27% on average compared to the possession of two
or more A-levels. Higher levels of study bring even greater returns on learning.®

Universities are currently faced with significant risks and uncertainties in a
continuing period of major change and transition across the UK. The long-term
impact for enrolments of full-time undergraduate students arising from the move
towards fee-based funding is still uncertain for Wales and poses risks in relation to
higher-cost subjects, widening access and the cross-border flows of students. Part-
time funding arrangements for 2014/15 and postgraduate taught arrangements are
yet to be fully determined and there may be a particular need to manage the
transition years for part-time providers where there is a risk of a significant drop in
support. The budget for research will be maintained until after the Research
Excellence Framework (REF) exercise at the moment, but its future beyond that is
not certain.

The long-term financial outlook for universities in Wales needs to be kept under
review. The Higher Education Funding Council for Wales (HEFCW) in its most
recent analysis of the financial position of the higher education sector in Wales
concluded that: “The figures for 2011/12, when adjusted to take account of the full
economic cost adjustments for the cost of capital and infrastructure, show that the
sector’s position is an aggregate deficit of £64m compared with a deficit of £56m in
2010/11. This represents the degree to which the sector is not in a position to
provide for a fully sustainable future.”®

Investment in higher education needs to take into account an increasingly
competitive international context. Expenditure on higher education in the UK as a
whole appears to have been relatively low in recent years (1.2% GDP in 2010
compared to the US at 2.7% for instance).’® Previous analyses indicate that
universities in Wales have been at a significant comparative funding disadvantage to
other UK countries throughout most of the preceding decade. HEFCW'’s Report
identified a funding gap with England of up to £69m and rising in 2007/08."" The
Learned Society, based on HEFCW's data, estimated the negative funding gap with
England per student had grown from £20 to £900 per student between 2000/01 and
2008/09 and the cumulative gap between 2000 and 2009 was £361m (and more for
Scotland).” The European Commission has set a target of 3% of GDP for
investment in innovation for countries within the European Union to remain
competitive globally in the long term.

® BIS Research Paper 45, The Returns to Higher Education Qualifications, June 2011.

*HEFCW Circular W13/15HE, 08 May 2013, para. 8, p.2.

' UUK, Higher Education in Focus: Driving Economic Growth, 2011.

" HEFCW, The Funding Gap 2007/8,undated (available on-line).

"2 The Learned Society of Wales, “Comments of the Council of the Learned Society of Wales on the
Welsh Government’s support for the universities in Wales”, March 2011.

Tudalen 3



RESEARCH

3.8.

3.9.

The importance of Research and innovation at universities in Wales has been
recognised by the Welsh Government’s science and innovation agendas.”® Higher
education accounts for nearly half of all Research & Development investment in
Wales.™ In addition to the long-run economic impact that research and innovation
can have, these activities represent a pinnacle of human achievement and have the
potential to change or enrich lives profoundly. Recent ground breaking
developments in Wales span diverse fields including, for instance, biotechnology
(e.g. the identification of diagnostic biomarkers for detecting early-stage lung
cancer), energy (e.g. patenting of microbial fuel cell technology), medicine (e.g.
development of treatment for neurodegenerative diseases), opto-electronics (e.g.
next generation computer graphics based on ray tracing and photon mapping), and
agriculture (e.g. methods of containment of fallen stock)."

It should be recognised from the outset that, while an increasing emphasis is placed
on the commercialisation of research and the income streams which it generates,
much of this research could not exist without significant grant funding to support
Welsh universities in these activities. \We share the ambition to raise the Welsh
share to 5% but do not see that figure as a reliable proxy for success in gaining
research funding more broadly. Nobody should be under any illusion about the very
substantial level of investment in the science base that would be required to
rebalance the subject mix in favour of UK Research Council success. More
generally, without significant investment in line with other economies, Wales will not
remain competitive or retain its international standing in this area.

4. How effective are HEIs in securing research income including Welsh Government
(WG) funding of research via HEFCW?

41.

4.2.

To answer this question fully requires recognition that the Welsh Government’s use
of Research Council income as a key performance indicator, while important,
provides only a single and indirect measure of research productivity and quality.

In contrast the main research performance indicators used by the UK HE Funding
Councils to assure themselves (and devolved governments) of the quality of
research being undertaken in the HE sector are (i) the results of the peer-review
Research Assessment Exercise (RAE) carried out every 5-6 years and (ii) the more
comprehensive biannual international bibliometric assessment of the UK research

'3 \Welsh Government, Science for Wales — A strategic agenda, March 2012; and, Welsh Government,
Innovation Wales, July 2013.

' Welsh Government, R&D expenditure by UK country, StatsWales, March 2012.

'® See Welsh Government, Advances, Issue 69, Summer 2013, pp.10-14.

Tudalen 4



4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

base commissioned by the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (DBIS).
In these comparisons, research outputs (e.g. journal publications and peer citation
data) are used to provide a more realistic, internationally recognised base for
demonstrating research quality and research efficiency.

The problem of focusing on a single input indicator such as the research income
from the UK Research Councils is that funding from the UK Research Councils does
not provide a complete picture of research funding in Welsh universities. Moreover,
as the value or quality of research does not always correlate with the amount of
money secured, it is important to recognise that not all disciplines require or have
access to the same amount of funding to conduct their research. For example,
Welsh universities are relatively good at attracting research funding from the Arts
and Humanities Research Council (AHRC) and Economic and Social Research
Council (ESRC) — however both these distribute a comparatively smaller proportion
of the total value of Research Council grants.®

Consequently, to address the question of Welsh universities’ research effectiveness
requires consideration of both the comparative quality of Welsh research outputs
and the relative efficiency of how research income is converted into research
outputs.

(a) Research Income

The Welsh Government'’s key research target remains achieving parity with other
UK nations in terms of the percentage of competitive Research Council income
based on the relative percentage of the UK population.'” Specifically this involves
increasing Wales’ proportional share of UK Research Council funding from 3.4% to
greater than 5% by 2017."® Over the past 10 years, Wales has secured between
3.1% and 3.4% of total UK Research Council income, a share considered by WG —
employing population size -to be insufficient when compared to England and
Scotland. However reliance on this single indirect indicator for assessing research
performance risks presenting a misleading and one-sided picture as it fails to
recognize:

(i) That Welsh universities are part of a world-leading UK science base, with
strong and leading performances on several international measures of
research output and efficiency.®

(ii) That historically the proportion of UK Research Council Funding secured by
universities in Wales is a direct result of the lower proportion of research

'® Thomson, 2010.

' Science for Wales, 2012.

"® Ibid, p.3.

'° Elsevier International Comparative Performance of the Welsh Research Base, 2013.

Tudalen 5



capacity in expensive science and technology, engineering and
mathematical (STEM) disciplines that historically exists in Wales compared
with universities in England and Scotland.?

(iii) That STEM disciplines typically attract the highest proportion of Research
Council grants.

(iv) That Welsh universities depend less on Research Council funding as a
source of research income.?' On average, UK Research Council funding
amounts to only 22% of the total research income secured by universities in
Wales and that while important, universities secure most of their research
income from a variety of other sources including the European Framework
programmes, Technology Strategy Board, National Health Service in Wales,
European Structural funds, charities and industry.

(v) That in 3 of the 7 Research Councils (Arts & Humanities Research Council,
Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council and the Economic
& Social Research Council) Welsh universities’ income exceeds the Welsh
Government’s 5% benchmark.

(b) Quality and Efficiency of Welsh Research

4.6. Despite comparatively low levels of Research Council income, Wales’ internationally
recognised research has risen dramatically over the last decade and now makes a
significant contribution to the UK’s world-leading research base. Evidence for this
comes from a close analysis of the last UK RAE and recent internationally
recognized bibliometric and econometric assessments of Wales’ comparative
standing.

RAE 2008

4.7. The 2008 RAE research performance indicated that Wales had a slightly lower
percentage (49 per cent) of research activity at the very highest 4* (world leading)
and 3* (internationally excellent) levels compared to the UK average (54 per cent).
However, a more careful analysis showed that based on the proportion of highest
quality research (4*+ 3*) Wales performed better than other regions in the UK, when
normalised for core (QR) research funding, confirming the excellent return on
investment when considering that the UK is the international leader in the efficiency
of research spending.?

%% | earned Society Report, 2012.
2! Thomson, 2010.
*2 | earned Society Report, 2012.

Tudalen 6



Bibliometric analysis

4.8. While clearly important for funding allocations, the RAE considers a small and
selective number of research outputs, which does not cover most of the published
research produced by universities in the time period. A more detailed bibliometric
analysis of Welsh publications over the past decade shows:

e That the volume of Welsh research has grown at a rate that outpaces the world
and UK averages.

e That over the same decade, the research impact (number of citations per paper)
from Welsh universities grew at a rate that overtook the UK average in the
period 2006-2010 (BIS Report. 2011).

e According to Thomson Reuters over the past decade research in Wales has
come from below the World, OECD and EU averages to take a place within the
top 20 research countries in the world.

¢ Interms of international research impact, \Wales’ current research impact (as
judged by citations per paper) now exceeds the world, OECD and EU averages,
despite producing proportionally fewer overall outputs and winning relatively low
levels of competitively awarded research funding.

Efficient use of research income

4.9. According to a forthcoming report by Elsevier, Wales is the most efficient constitute
country in the UK for converting Gross Expenditure on R&D (GERD) into
publications and one of the most efficient in the world for countries of a similar size.
This remarkable finding is attributed to the overall low levels of Welsh GERD and a
relatively slow growing researcher base.?

How successful are Welsh Higher Education Institutions in securing research
income from all sources?

5.1. Over the past 6 years, Welsh universities secured over £1.5 billion in research
income from a variety of funding sources including UK Research Councils,
European Framework programmes, Technology Strategy Board, NHS in Wales,
European Structural funds, charities and industry.

5.2. One of the most significant areas of growth over this period has been the year on
year increase in funding from EU sources. In 2011/12 this accounted for nearly 14%
of the sector’s total research income, compared with 6.5% in 2005/06.

5.3. Although for the historical reasons outlined above, Wales’ universities secure less
overall research income from UK Research Councils compared to other UK
constituent countries by proportion of population:

2 Elsevier International Comparative Performance of the Welsh Research Base, 2013.

Tudalen 7



(i) The amount of Research Council funding income per head of population for
Wales received by Welsh university remains similar to the average for
English regions if the ‘Golden Triangle’ universities (i.e. Cambridge, Oxford
and London’s top research intensives) which account for some 29% of total
income are excluded.*

(i) Success rate in terms of the number of awards to applications submitted
from Wales’ universities to the UK Research Councils, remains close to the
UK average across the Research Councils.

In answering the above question you may also want to consider:
Which factors lead to some Welsh Higher Education Institutions receiving more
research funding than others?

6.1. Like other constitute UK countries, the Welsh higher education sector comprises a
diverse range of universities whose mission, discipline mix, history and student/staff
size determine the extent of research intensity and hence differential amounts of
research income. All Welsh universities engage in research and in the 2008 RAE,
every Welsh university that submitted research staff produced research that was
rated ‘world leading’ (4*: 2-19%) or internationally excellent (3*: 17-48%). The five
largest welsh universities, however, with a combined annual turnover of £1 billion
and over 70% of all students in Wales, secure more than 95% of all Wales’
university research income.

How can Welsh Higher Education Institutions improve their performance to meet
the Welsh Government’s ambition that they receive at least 5 per cent of UK
Research Council funding?

7.1. Welsh universities currently employ a range of within- and across- institution
initiatives designed to improve and maximize research quality and income including
increased funding from UK Research councils. These involve implementing strategic
improvements - all of which have led universities to pay close attention to levels of
research productivity, research quality, performance management, and
interdisciplinary collaboration - and an ongoing review of competitive UK and EU
funding schemes. Examples include (i) institutional research management, (e.g.
reviewing competitive grant opportunities; actioning feedback from research
councils; identifying and developing larger possibly pan-Wales proposals; and
systematizing internal peer review), (ii) institution professional development and
training for early careers researchers (e.g. Research Team Leaders’ Development
Programme developed at Cardiff University, which won a Times Higher Award in
2011) (iii) Pan-Wales research leadership programmes (e.g. Welsh Crucible®® and

2 Thomson, 2010.
3 hitp://www.welshcrucible.org.uk/

Tudalen 8



7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

Welsh Senior Research Leaders programme?); and finally (iv) promoting the
achievement and research profile of the Welsh research base (e.g. dedicated article
in the prestigious journal SCIENCE in April 2013%).

How can the Welsh Government help Welsh universities to achieve the main
objective set out in Science for Wales?

Given the international ambitions set out by the Welsh Government in Science for
Wales?® and more recently in the Policy Statement for Higher Education,®® the
Welsh Government can help Welsh universities to achieve the main objective set out
in Science for Wales of building ‘a strong and dynamic science base that supports

the economic and national development of Wales’.*°

Universities are recognised throughout the world as one of the critical drivers of
sustainable economic growth. For Welsh universities to maximise their contribution
to economic growth and Wales’ international standing in the increasingly competitive
domestic and international environment, further funding will be required aimed at (i)
building Wales’ research capacity and (ii) developing a unique, strong and
recognizable Welsh brand that can be used alongside individual institutional and UK
brands to promote the high-quality and balanced sector-wide offerings for different
international audiences. A positive brand like that developed in Scotland could be
expected to have a significant impact on recruitment of students and academic staff,
attracting resources and inward investment.®’

Despite the growing importance of education and student relevant metrics,
internationally recognized world-class universities remains largely defined by their
research quality. Research is increasingly employed as an indication of a country’s
reputation, potential to secure inward investment and ability to compete successfully
in the global economy.

Wales’ university research base is uniquely placed to make a direct, distinctive and
reputation enhancing contribution to Wales’ economic, social and cultural ambitions
of being recognised as “small smart country”.

% hitp://www.Ifhe.ac.uk/en/research-resources/publications/engage-summer-

2013/development/developing-research-leadership.cfm

27 sciencecareers.org/Wales2013.

2 \Welsh Government, 2012.

29 \Welsh Government, 2013.

% Science for Wales, p.3.

3 Universities’ Contribution to Scotland’s Economic Growth, 2013.

Tudalen 9



7.6. While few would argue that Welsh universities need to improve and secure more
research grant income, a key reason for the lower than expected overall volume of
Research Council income, and in particular less funding from the highest spending
physical and medical science councils, stems from Wales’ historically smaller
university science and postgraduate research base compared to Scotland and
England.®

7.7. Realizing that a strong science research base is crucial to improving Wales’
economic wellbeing, international reputation and securing a prosperous, healthy and
sustainable future for Wales,* the Welsh government in 2012 announced the Sér
Cymru initiative as part of the Chief Scientific Adviser's agenda for securing scientific
growth.

7.8. Recognising that “Governments can create the conditions under which research and
innovation can thrive” and in particular “make vital investments to build capability”,*
in March 2012 the Welsh Government invested £50 million in the Sér Cymru
collaborative programme over a five-year period. The initiative is intended to help
Wales build a more sustainable and successful research base capable of attracting
further competitive Research Council funding.® It is also intended to help support
the even more ambitious target articulated by Welsh Government in June 2013 of
“building a world-class” research system in Wales that serves the interests of

learners and the nation in the twenty-first century”.*

7.9. The five year Sér Cymru funding provides a much welcome and needed impetus for
Welsh research. If universities in Wales are to consistently secure 5% of Research
Council funding® and deliver a “world class research system”*® however, there will
need to be much greater investment in research capacity which reflects, in
particular, that:

(i) Higher education in Wales (unlike England) accounts for nearly half of all
research and development funding in Wales.*

(ii) Wales’ research base shows the lowest growth among UK constituent
countries and comparator EU countries as well as the lowest R&D intensity
as measured by expenditure on R&D per GDP.*°

%2 | earned Society Report, 2012.

% Welsh Government, Science for Wales, 2012.

* Ibid, p.7

% Welsh Government, Policy Statement for Higher Education, 2013, p28

% |bid.

" Welsh Government, Science for Wales, 2012.

3 \Welsh Government, HE Policy Statement for Higher Education, 2013.

% Welsh Government, “R&D expenditure by UK country.” StatsWales, March 2012.

0 Elsevier International Comparative Performance of the Welsh Research Base, 2013.

Tudaleno10



7.10.Although the quality of Welsh research currently outperforms many similar sized
counties in terms of its research quality, Welsh universities have managed to
achieve this with less research capacity than other countries. According to OECD
figures, Wales has the lowest proportion of researchers for its population (0.31)
compared with the 3 other UK constituent countries (Northern Ireland: 0.34;
Scotland: 0.43 and England: 0.43). Moreover Wales has the lowest proportion of
researchers for its population (0.31) compared with 4 similar sized research
productive European countries (Denmark: 0.67; Finland: 0.74; Norway: 0.55 and
Ireland 0.34).

7.11.A consequence of this overall lower proportion of research capacity/critical mass
compared with universities in England and Scotland is the requirement of more
support to help grow a sustainable vibrant postgraduate system in the sector.
Funding a sustainable system for attracting and funding postgraduates both from
Wales, UK, EU and overseas needs to be an essential part of any holistic research
strategy for universities and the sector more broadly if Wales wants to maintain,
grow and market its research impact.

7.12.To build a strong, sustainable and dynamic science base capable of supporting the
economic and national development of Wales, in a reasonable time frame, will
require further investment in internationally excellent research capacity over and
above the current Sér Cymru initiatives. All this is underpinned by Quality Research
(QR) funding, and would not be achievable without it. Further decline in investment
in research would have serious and lasting consequences for Wales in the future.

In which areas do Welsh Higher Education Institutions successfully collaborate to
bid for research funding, and how could improvements be made in other areas
where greater collaboration is required to increase research income?

8.1. Researchers at Welsh universities successfully collaborate across a range of
regional, national, European and international boundaries. The following are some
illustrative examples:

(A) Research Centres

8.2. Since 2005 a number of successful major collaborative research centres have been
funded by HEFCW. These include:

(i) The Low Carbon Research Institute (LCRI), which was set up to unite and
promote energy research in Wales, UK and to help deliver a low carbon
future. The multidisciplinary LCRI supports the energy sector, UK and
globally, to develop low carbon generation, storage, distribution and end use
technologies, and to offer policy advice. LCRI’s research fund portfolio now
exceeds over £80 million with funds divided equally between three sources;

Tutladen 11



the UK Research Councils; the Convergence Energy Programme
(ERDF/ESF); and industrial, government and EU competitive research
funds.*'

(i) Wales Institute of Social and Economic Research, Data and Methods.*?

(i)  Wales Institution of Cognitive Neuroscience*®

(iv)  Climate Change Consortium of Wales (C3W)**

(v) Wales Institute of Mathematical and Computational Sciences*®

(B) European Collaboration

8.3. The main areas where Welsh universities successful collaborate include the fields of
health, biosciences, ICT, nanoscience, energy environments, space and social
sciences. There is evidence from European Framework Programmes grants that
Welsh Universities have worked with over 1,500 collaborators from universities and
businesses across Europe and the rest of the world.

(C) Publications

8.4. Research is a global enterprise and international collaboration resulting from co-
authorship has been a rapidly growing component of core research activity for most
successful countries and universities. International collaboration publications in
particular are rising and typically secure a greater number of peer recognition
(citations) than domestic publications. In this regard:

o Wales’ internationally collaborative publications have been increasing resulting
in high field weighted citation impact that is 59% above the world average.*®

o 43% of Welsh research articles result from collaboration outside the UK. This
share has grown significantly from 1997-2001 when the level was around 25%.

e Comparing between the UK constituent countries shows that Wales has now
the largest proportion of publications with an international co-author.

e By comparison a relatively small portion of publications result from collaboration
within Wales (this is neither surprising nor problematic, however).

e Aside from collaboration with constituent countries such as Scotland and
England, Wales has extensive collaborative publications with European partners
such as the Netherlands, Switzerland, Denmark and Belgium, global partners
such as USA, Canada, Australia and Japan, and also emerging countries such
as China and India.

1 http://www.Icri.org.uk/.

2 hitp://www.wiserd.ac.uk/about-us/.

3 http://www.wicn.ac.uk/index.html.

“ hitp://www.climatechangewales.ac.uk/.

5 http://www.wimcs.ac.uk/.

“ Elsevier International Comparative Performance of the Welsh Research Base, 2013.

Tudalen212




TUITION FEE INCOME AND SUPPORT

8.5.

8.6.

Before answering the specific questions set out in the Consultation Letter we note
that the Inquiry chooses to focus on full-time undergraduate higher education
funding only. There are clear risks in developing elements of HE funding policy in
isolation, however. Full-time undergraduate funding policy has a direct impact on
other areas including part-time and postgraduate provision, research, innovation and
related activities.

In relation to part-time and postgraduate study in particular, funding issues still need
to be addressed. Part-time funding arrangements for 2014/15 and postgraduate
taught arrangements are yet to be fully determined. At this stage we understand that
full new student support regime for part-time students will not be introduced for
2014/15.*” However, eligible students studying at an intensity of over 25% of a full-
time course would be able to access a non-means tested loan*® and funding should
be available to HEFCW “to continue to fund part-time provision at broadly current
levels and in return expect higher education institutions to exercise restraint in the
setting of part-time tuition fees”. There are clear risks if funding issues for these
areas are not addressed, or concentration on full-time funding issues alone prevents
them from being addressed adequately. Higher Education Funding Council for
England (HEFCE)'s analysis of the impact of the 2012 reforms in England, in
particular, identified a 40% drop in part-time enrolments which points to the
significant risks for policy makers in this area.*®

What has been the financial effect of the new tuition fee policy introduced in 2012
which allows HEIs to charge students up to £9,000 per annum for HE courses?
What are the financial implications of the WG’s tuition fee grant? What future
financial effect is this policy likely to have?*

9.1.

The tuition fee policy introduced in 2012 allowed fees for UK/EU full-time
undergraduate courses to be charged up to a maximum of £9k. Welsh and EU
domiciled students were made eligible to receive fee grant payments to pay the
difference between £3,575 and the fee charged by an institution. These were
designed to ensure that no Welsh student paid more in real terms, wherever they
chose to study, than in 2010/11. HEFCW, however, was required to meet the cost of

““Welsh Government Cabinet Statement, 05 March 2013.
“Welsh Government, Student Finance Wales Information Notice (03/2013), Part-time Student
Support: Fees (Wales) for Academic Year 2014/15, 03 June 2013.

“*® HEFCE, Higher Education in England: Impact of the 2012 reforms, March 2013.
*® This includes both the questions on p.1 and in the appendix of the consultation letter. The first

sentence/question is identical in both contexts.

Tutlen 13



9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

the fee grant payments — including those to institutions outside Wales - from its
budget, meaning that as fee grant payments have increased, the budget remaining
for allocation to universities in Wales has correspondingly reduced. The budget for
fee grant payments increased by two thirds to £167m in 2013/14, including £50m to
institutions outside Wales.

The overall financial impact for universities in Wales is not fully clear at this stage
since financial and enrolment data for 2012/13 and beyond is not yet available.
According to HEFCW'’s estimates, all universities in Wales (except the Open
University) were expected to benefit from increased net funding as a result of
increased fee income in 2013/14.°" However, the actual outcomes depend on a
number of variables including, in particular, cross-border flows and the overall
budget allocated to higher education.

Cross-border flows have significant financial implications for universities in Wales
under the new regime. Overall, there appears to have been a positive net financial
impact from net cross-border flows (i.e. the additional fee income from rest of UK
students, less the fee grant payments for Welsh students choosing to study in other
parts of the UK). Recent UCAS figures show that the number of accepted applicants
to Welsh universities from the rest of the UK (non EU) fell significantly for 2012 entry
but partially recovered for 2013 entry to 10,530. The great majority of the rest of UK
students for 2013 entry were from England (10,320 or 98% in 2013/14). The
number of Welsh students choosing to study in the rest of the UK (i.e. eligible for fee
grant payments) has increased successively over the past four years to 7,500 for
2013/4 entry. In addition there were 990 accepted applicants to Welsh institutions
from the EU in 2013/14 (also eligible for fee grant payments). The net effect has
been a net inflow of students from the rest of the UK, but the margin appears to
have narrowed in the last two application cycles:®

Number of acceptances by year of entry
UK-Wales Inflow-Outflow 2010-11 | 2011-12 | 2012-13 | 2013-14
Rest of UK students accepted to institutions
in Wales 10,500 12,320 9,390 | 10,530
Welsh students accepted to institutions in
the Rest of UK 6,460 6,740 7,320 7,500
Net inflow/(outflow) 4,040 5,580 2,070 3,030

While there have been gains in fee income overall for the sector, there are concerns
about the variable impact of the policy reforms at the level of individual universities.
In particular, HEFCW's strategic reallocation exercise in 2012 required universities
to commit to an average fee of £7.5k from 2013/14 in return for receiving a share of

> HEFCW Circular 13/09HE Funding Allocations 2013/14.
2 UCAS Interim assessment of UCAS acceptances, 24 September 2013, Table 1a.

Tudalem414



strategically reallocated student number places (about half of all numbers). This has
prevented the sector in Wales from benefiting from comparable levels of fee income
to other UK countries. Recent UCAS analysis confirms that average fee levels were
higher in England than Wales in the 2013 recruitment cycle, and while fee levels
increased in England, fees did not significantly increase in Wales. Access to the £9k
maximum fee is a key issue for some universities, particularly post-92 institutions in
Wales.

9.5. Another important factor is the overall Welsh Government Budget for higher
education. Changes to the Welsh Government higher education budget have had a
very significant impact on universities in Wales. The Welsh Government’s higher
education budget for 2013/14 was £382 million. This was similar in nominal terms to
the Final Budget in the previous year (£380 million)*® but a reduction of nearly 2% in
real terms.> Over the last three years the higher education budget has reduced
significantly from £452 million in 2010/11 in the Second Supplementary Budget (£70
million or 15% in nominal terms, and £96 million or 20% in 2012/13 terms).

9.6. Changes in the way that funding for full-time undergraduate provision is funded
currently poses risks in relation to higher-cost subjects, widening access and the
cross-border flows of students. The budgets for teaching (-31%) and innovation &
engagement (-45%) were significantly reduced for 2013/14, while research funding
remained static. The budget available for allocation to universities will reduce
significantly again in 2014/15 as a further cohort of students become eligible for fee
grant payments. The budget for research we expect to be maintained until after the
Research Excellence Framework (REF) exercise, but its future beyond that is not
certain - a clear cut in the Quality Research (QR) budget would be a first for a UK
nation and would involve significant reputational risks for the sector. Maintaining the
budgets for part-time and research, however, will have significant consequences for
other areas of support including for instance high cost and strategically important
subjects, widening access, and Welsh medium provision. HEFCW funding for
innovation and engagement is expected to be removed altogether except for
residual project funding in 2014/15. In the short-term, it is clear that there is no
capacity for absorbing further reductions without damaging provision with its wider
consequences for Wales.

*® The Final Budget 2013/14 for higher education was £380,424, the First Supplementary Budget
£382,375, and Second Supplementary Budget £371,026.
% Based on HM Treasury GDP deflators as at June 2013.

Tutlalen 15



10. Does the new tuition fee policy create a greater or lesser level of financial

11.

12.

uncertainty for Higher Education Institutions? Please explain your answer.

10.1.There are many areas of significant uncertainty for universities at the moment,
arising from major change in fee and funding arrangements across the UK as well
as in Wales. In the new regime, funding has become increasingly fee-based. It has
not been possible, however, to rely on previous patterns of recruitment to forecast
future behaviour, and in many respects the sector is still in a transitional period
before new patterns establish themselves. Developing policy in this context has
been challenging — part-time and post-graduate funding policies have required
implementation of temporary/transitional measures for instance.

What has been, and is likely to be in the future, the financial implications of the
Welsh Government’s tuition fee grant?

11.1.Most immediately, our concerns are that further reductions in overall funding and
increases in fee payments, will have a serious impact on the ability to fund important
areas of activity as outlined above.

11.2.In the longer term, the policies need to be considered in the light of other market
factors. In particular, the demographic projections for both England and Wales
project a significant decline in the key age groups for applying to university between
2010 and 2020, which starts to recover by around 2020.

Does the current funding regime provide effective financial support to students
from the lowest income households and is this the most cost effective way of
financially supporting this cohort of students?

12.1.So far the evidence from the reforms in England and Wales appears to show that
there has been little impact on full-time students from lower income households or
other widening access groups resulting from the introduction of the higher maximum
fee of £9k, either with or without the support of fee grant payments. Application rates
through UCAS from disadvantaged groups in England rose to a new high in England
in 2013 despite the significant change in fee levels. The difference in demand by
background remains largest for high-tariff universities. While universities continue to
invest a significant proportion of their income in widening access activities, however,
the impact of reductions in grant funding for universities (including the removal of
widening access strategy funding and potential reduction/removal of widening
access premium funding in 2014/15) and future funding arrangements for part-time
and flexible provision may have significant consequences for widening access in
future.

Tudalens16



13. What are the financial implications for Wales of subsidising Welsh students who
study in Higher Education Institutions outside of Wales?

13.1.In 2013/14 the fee grant payments to students choosing to study outside Wales was
£50 million, and this figure is set to rise as another year/cohort of students is able to
take advantage of this support arrangement. Under current arrangements, the fee
grant payments are met from HEFCW’s budget. This means that, in effect, Welsh
universities pay for Welsh students who choose to study outside Wales. In future we
would welcome a review of how this expenditure can be best utilised, since it seems
to be wrong in principle and is unique within the UK (Northern Ireland also provides
grants to home students to support them in paying fees of up to £9k, but does not
offer this to home students who choose to study in other UK countries). We would
welcome, for instance, exploring how at least some of this funding could be used to
provide more targeted support for widening access students, or those wishing to
pursue priority subjects in Wales for instance.

14. What are the financial implications of more expensive subjects (e.g. medicine and
engineering) being funded under the new tuition fee regime given that some
courses may cost in excess of the maximum £9,000 per annum for Higher
Education Institutions to deliver?

14.1.A consequence of moving from grant-based to fee-based funding is that fee levels
do not, in general, reflect the costs of different subjects. High-cost and low-cost
subjects alike are subject to a maximum fee of £9K. This obviously has significant
financial implications for institutions with a comparatively high-cost subject base,
particularly in the short-term, and could potentially lead to an unwanted shift in
provision across the sector towards lower-cost subject areas. Formerly, direct grant
compensated for differences in costs by applying different levels of grant for different
academic subject categories. In 2011/12 this ranged from just over £1,867 per full-
time equivalent student (i.e. for 120 credits) for social science to £11,658 for FTE for
clinical medicine and dentistry at undergraduate level — from which it can be seen
that the cost of courses in a number of areas were considered to exceed the £9K.
Under the new regime introduced in 2012/13, premiums were used to offset the
costs of only the highest cost and strategically important subjects. The lack of
funding to support higher cost subjects remains an area of significant concern. For
2014/15 there is a risk that the premium will disappear entirely as a consequence of
further reductions in the HE budget.

14.2.Universities are faced with a number of difficult choices in addressing the challenge
of high-cost subjects: cross-subsidy from other subjects or activities, reduction of
costs (with potential implications for learners), or potential divestment of activities in
higher cost areas.

Tutialen 17



15. How important is the income stream to Welsh Higher Education Institutions from
tuition fees received from students domiciled outside Wales including the rest of
the UK, European students and overseas students?

15.1.Wales is already one of the most successful countries in the world for the
recruitment of overseas students. The sector attracted 25,270 students from outside
the UK in 2011/12. The UK’s market share of international students is second only to
the US (9.9%),> and Wales has a comparatively large share (5.7% in 2011/12) of
overseas enrolments in the UK. As demonstrated by recent research®
commissioned by HEW, international students’ off-campus personal expenditure
(e.g. spend on rent, food and other living expenses) amounted to an estimated £195
million. In addition, the sector attracted nearly 39,000 students from outside Wales,
who spent an estimated £301 million on living and personal expenses. The
expenditure of these students from outside Wales can be regarded as an injection
into the Welsh economy. As discussed in the next section, this is a significant area
of further opportunity for Welsh universities and the Welsh economy more generally.

OTHER INCOME AND FINANCIAL ISSUES

16. What opportunities do Welsh HEls have to increase income from recruiting
additional students?

16.1.In terms of full-time students, there appears to be further potential for recruiting more
students to Welsh universities, particularly in the long term. The key limiting factor
at the moment is the restriction on student support costs/student numbers, although
the extent to which this is an issue varies for individual universities. Demographic
change, however, is an important factor: projections for both England and Wales
point to a significant decline in the key age groups for applying to university between
2010 and 2020, which starts to recover by around 2020. UCAS analysis has
confirmed that the recent decline in applicants to Wales is primarily connected with
population trends. The application rate of 18 year olds from Wales through UCAS in
both 2012 and 2013 was around 30%, the highest recorded. However, the 18 year
old application rate for Wales (30%) was still lower than for England (35%), Scotland
(32%) and Northern Ireland (48%) which all saw slight increases in their application

°® Universities UK, Higher Education in Focus: Driving Economic Growth - Higher Education a core
strategic asset to the UK, 2011.

% HESA, HE students 2011-12, HEIDI Report 2013.

%" Kelly, McNicoll et al., The Economic Impact of Higher Education in Wales, June 2013,
commissioned by HEW.

Tudalens18



rates in 2013, which points to potential for future growth in Wales.*® Seen in a more
global context, a number of countries across the world are showing phenomenal
increases in participation rates and expansion of higher education (63% of Korea’s
25-34 year olds held an HE qualification in 2009, compared to 13% of its older age
groups for instance).

16.2.1In terms of part-time and postgraduate students, the picture is more complex. Part-
time and postgraduate student recruitment is currently unregulated in the sense that
there is no restriction on the fee levels or student numbers. Both the OldBell3 report
in Wales and the UUK study in England point to the importance of addressing
supply-side issues for maximising part-time recruitment,’® and point to evidence of
instances where the supply of part-time provision has been the determining factor in
accounting for changes in part-time enrolment patterns in Wales. In recent years,
part-time enrolment trends have been downward and there is a significant risk that
unless policy solutions address these issues there could be a large reduction along
the lines of England. At the same time, there is a very real opportunity to adopt a
policy which effects a different and more positive outcome in Wales.

16.3.In terms of international students, there are significant opportunities for substantial
growth in recruitment and universities in Wales share an ambition to build on their
considerable strengths in this area. The numbers of internationally mobile students
are projected to rise from 3.7m in 2009 to 7.0m in 2020, * and universities in Wales
collectively have strong ambitions to capitalise on the potential opportunities through
further investment in this area with major implications for export earnings for Wales.
This is an area in which the Welsh Government and universities could work together
to realise the potentially substantial economic, cultural and reputational gains for
Wales.

17. What are the financial consequences, now or in the future, of other changes in the
HE marketplace including the entry of private providers?

17.1.The private higher education sector is emerging as a growing force in many parts of
the world and presents a range of potential opportunities and challenges. From the
overall UK perspective, private providers are broadening the UK offer by providing
an extended range of opportunities to suit the needs of different individuals. In our
response to the Further & Higher Education Bill 2012 and HE (Wales) Bill
Consultation 2013, HEW outlined a number of issues which need to be addressed

8 UCAS, Demand for full-time undergraduate higher education in 2013, 23 July 2013:
http://www.ucas.com/news-events/news/2013/demand-full-time-undergraduate-higher-education-

2013

> UUK (2010) op cit.; Gareth Williams, Old Bell3 Ltd, Employer engagement with part-time higher
education, (2010).

% Ibid.

Tutalen 19



by future regulatory arrangements in relation to alternative providers. From a
financial perspective, the key issues include the following:

o First and foremost it is essential that the sector maintains its international
reputation for high quality provision as part of a UK-wide system — damage to
the reputation of the sector would have very significant and lasting financial
consequences.

. It will also be important to ensure that there is a level playing field. Alternative
providers currently avoid many of the costs associated with the regulatory
obligations for universities including information requirements for purposes of
public assurance, and the costs of engagement with social justice and public
agenda such as widening access and Welsh Medium for example. Under the
recent proposals in the HE (Wales) Bill Technical consultation, for instance, we
have expressed concerns that it appears that the maximum fee levels may only
apply to regulated providers i.e. unregulated providers who opt to have courses
designated on a case by case basis would be able to charge unrestricted fee
levels.

° At present the Welsh Government has little control over student numbers in
terms of private providers operating in Wales and no control over those
operating in England. This could cause potential difficulties for the Welsh
budget, which in turn could impact on the amount of funding available for the
publically-funded Welsh HE sector to meet Welsh Government priorities.

18. What progress is being made in relation to the Welsh Government’s Programme for
Government indicator that ‘at least 75% of Welsh Higher Education Institutions will
have an annual income in excess of the UK median’, and how can this be improved
in the future?

18.1.Progress against this indicator is reported annually by the Higher Education Funding
Council for Wales, as part of the HEFCW Corporate Strategy targets. For 2011/12,
we understand, however, that the UK median was identified at around £122 million,
and four of the ten universities in Wales exceeded this. In 2012/13, there was a
merger between the University of Glamorgan and the University of \Wales, Newport
to form the University of South Wales. Swansea Metropolitan University also
formally merged with University of Wales: Trinity Saint David in 2013, but ‘Swansea
Metropolitan’ currently retains its separate identity as part of the larger university.
We currently await the outcomes of the review in North East Wales, which may point
to the consideration of further change. We would expect that 4 out of 9 universities
(44%) will exceed the UK median in the 2012/13 analysis, or 4 out of 8 universities
(50%) if Swansea Metropolitan’s figures are included with those of the University of
Wales: Trinity Saint David. One further institution is very close to the £122 million
median at the moment, and could conceivably exceed it in future through growth in
activity rather than reconfiguration. We have previously expressed our reservations
about the use of this indicator, however. From a data perspective it needs to be

Tudalero20



interpreted with caution - the calculation of the median itself depends on how
institutions are aggregated or included (HESA separately record 206 higher
education institutions for instance, and the median would be closer to £90 million). It
masks the full extent of collaboration and reconfiguration across the sector.

18.2.In making the Higher Education Policy statement on 06 June 2011, the Minister for
Education and Skills acknowledged that ‘the reconfiguration agenda, which has
dominated policy for the last decade, is now largely completed”®' and signalled a
new, post-reconfiguration HE policy that “looks forward to how we should build on
the existing success of Welsh higher education.” In the past, the Welsh Government
has made additional investment in higher education contingent on delivery against
this agenda®. In the light of the new post-reconfiguration agenda, investment in
universities in Wales should be a high priority in order to realise the longer-term
benefits and savings that have underpinned the transformational agenda.

19. Final comments

19.1.Higher education has a significant role in driving economic growth both in the short
and long run. We must ensure that resource decisions in the short-term do not store
up problems or miss opportunities for the longer term. In particular, it should be
recognised that there is no further capacity at the present time to reduce funding
without serious consequences for universities’ activities. As a result any cut in
funding could impact on research, jobs, skills, investment from business and the
attractiveness to business to collaborate, with a significant detrimental impact for the
wider economy and well-being of Wales.

Higher Education Wales
September 2013

®' National Assembly for Wales, Record of Proceedings, 11 June 2013, 15:09 (webpage: here).

62 \Welsh Assembly Government, Reaching Higher: Higher Education and the Learning Country — A
Strategy for the higher education sector in Wales, March 2002. See paragraphs 22 and 24 in
particular.

Tulalen 21



CCAUC 29/09/13

Cynulliad Cendlaethol Cymru

Pwyllgor Cyllid

Fin(4)-HEFO7

Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch

Tystiolaeth gan Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru (CCAUC)

Cyllido Addysg Uwch yng Nghymru

Cyflwyniad CCAUC i'r Pwyllgor Cyllid

Cyflwyniad

1.

Mae Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru (CCAUC) yn Gorff a Noddir gan Lywodraeth
Cymru, a sefydlwyd gan Ddeddf Addysg Bellach ac Uwch 1992. Mae CCAUC yn
gyfrifol am gyllido addysg uwch (AU) yng Nghymru ac mae'n dosbarthu cyllid ar gyfer
addysg, ymchwil a gweithgareddau cysylltiedig i naw sefydliad addysg uwch (SAUau),
yn cynnwys gweithgareddau addysgu Y Brifysgol Agored yng Nghymru. Rydym hefyd
yn cyllido cyrsiau AU mewn colegau addysg bellach. Mae ein cyfrifoldebau am
hyfforddiant cychwynnol athrawon yn cael eu cwmpasu o dan Reoliadau Addysg
(Cymwysterau Athrawon Ysgol) (Cymru) 2004 a Deddf Addysg 2005. Wrth glustnodi
cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru i ddarparwyr AU, rydym yn ceisio sicrhau bod
blaenoriaethau polisi AU Llywodraeth Cymru, yn cynnwys y rhai sydd wedi'u nodi yn
ein strategaeth gorfforaethol a'r mesurau cysylltiedig, yn cael eu bodloni.

Ymchwil

2.

Pa mor liwyddiannus yw SAUau Cymru wrth sicrhau incwm ymchwil o'r holl
ffynonellau.

Yn 2011/12 (y data diweddaraf sydd ar gael), gwnaeth prifysgolion Cymru sicrhau
incwm ymchwil a ddaeth i gyfanswm o £170 miliwn gan ffynonellau allanol (h.y. nid
CCAUC). Mae dadansoddiad o'r ffynhonnell incwm hwn fel a ganlyn:

Ffynhonnell Incwm Ymchwil o
brifysgolion Cymru
201112
£M
Cynghorau Ymchwil 51.8
Cyrff llywodraeth ganolog y DU 46.2
Ffynonellau'r UE 33.5
Cyrff elusennol yn y DU 22.0
Diwydiant, masnach a chorfforaethau 9.4
cyhoeddus y DU
Rhyngwladol (nid-UE) 5.3
Arall 1.7
Cyfanswm 169.9

Ffynhonnell: Cofnod Ystadegau Cyllid yr Asiantaeth Ystadegau Addysg Uwch 2011/12

1

Tudalen 22



CCAUC 29/09/13

Mae cwestiwn 3 isod yn cyfeirio at y dybiaeth o gyfran enwol o 5% ar gyfer Cymru
mewn perthynas ag incwm o’r Cynghorau Ymchwil. Cafodd sector AU Cymru fwy na'r
gyfran 5% enwol o gyfanswm y DU ar gyfer incwm ymchwil gan lywodraeth y DU a
ffynonellau'r UE, ond llai na'r 5% enwol gan gyrff elusennol y DU a
diwydiant/masnach/corfforaethau cyhoeddus y DU. Nid yw hyn yn syndod, o ystyried
ystod y pynciau a dosbarthiad corfforaethau'r diwydiant a chyhoeddus o'r maint i
gomisiynu ymchwil.

Caiff gallu'r sector i ddenu incwm ymchwil gan ffynonellau allanol ei danategu gan 'y
cyllid ymchwil y mae CCAUC yn ei ddarparu (Ymchwil o Ansawdd ac Ymchwil OI-
raddedig. Mae'r cyllid hwn, sydd oddeutu £76 miliwn y flwyddyn ar hyn o bryd, yn cael
ei glustnodi ar sail canlyniadau asesiad o ansawdd yr ymchwil ledled y DU (Ymarfer
Asesu Ymchwil 2008) a'r Fframwaith Asesu Ymchwil y DU cyn hynny, cyhoeddir y
canlyniadau yn 2014). Mae hon yn broses ledled y DU o adolygiad arbenigol sy'n
darparu atebolrwydd ar gyfer buddsoddiad cyhoeddus mewn ymchwil ac mae'n
cynhyrchu tystiolaeth o fudd y buddsoddiad hwn.

Roedd canlyniadau Ymarfer Asesu Ymchwil 2008, sy'n llywio'r dyraniad o gyllid
Ymchwil o Ansawdd/Ymchwil Ol-raddedig yn dangos bod Cymru wedi perfformio'n gryf
ar draws amrywiaeth o bynciau gyda chyrhaeddiad o'r radd flaenaf mewn nifer o
feysydd yn cynnwys peirianneg sifil, cyfrifiadureg a gwybodeg, seiciatreg a
niwrowyddoniaeth, seicoleg ac astudiaethau Celtaidd. Cafodd 14% o'r holl
weithgarwch ymchwil a gyflwynwyd gan sefydliadau Cymru ei asesu fel gweithgarwch
'o'r radd flaenaf', gyda 35% pellach yn cael ei asesu fel 'rhagorol yn rhyngwladol'.

Mae cyllid y Cyngor ar gyfer ymchwil (Ymchwil o Ansawdd/Ymchwil Ol-raddedig) yn
parhau i fod yr un ffynhonnell unigol fwyaf o incwm ymchwil ar gyfer SAUau Cymru o
bell ffordd, sy'n dod i 31% o gyfanswm incwm ymchwil sector AU Cymru yn 2011/12.
Roedd hyn yn cynrychioli 4% o gyfanswm y Cyllid Ymchwil Rheolaidd ar gyfer y DU yn
gyfan, canran a oedd yn ddigyfnewid ers 2010/11 (ac sy'n is na'r gyfran enwol ar gyfer
Cymru yng nghwestiwn 3).

Sut gall SAUau Cymru wella'u perfformiad i fodloni uchelgais Llywodraeth
Cymru sef eu bod yn derbyn o leiaf 5 y cant o gyllid Cynghorau Ymchwil y DU?

Cyfran y sector o gyfanswm incwm Cynghorau Ymchwil y DU oedd 3.4% yn 2011/12, a
oedd yn ddigyfnewid ers 2010/11.

Ceir cwestiwn ynghylch a yw uchelgais Llywodraeth Cymru i SAUau Cymru dderbyn o
leiaf 5 y cant o gyllid Cynghorau Ymchwil y DU yn rhesymol ai peidio. Mae'r 'Triongl
Euraid' o brifysgolion (Rhydychen, Caergrawnt a Llundain) yn elwa'n benodol gan
gyllid cystadleuol y Cyngor Ymchwil ac maent oll wedi'u lleoli yn Lloegr, felly'n
effeithio'n anghymesur ar y perfformiad yn rhywle arall. Er bod sefydliadau yng
Nghymru'n cael mwy na'r gyfran 5% enwol yn y Celfyddydau a'r Dyniaethau a
Gwyddorau Cymdeithasol, mae'r Cynghorau Ymchwil yn y meysydd hynny yn dyfarnu
symiau is o gyllid o gymharu a'r rhai sy'n cwmpasu gwyddoniaeth a thechnoleg; mae
ymchwiliad i'r dosbarthiad pynciau yng Nghymru wedi dangos bod ymchwilwyr yn fwy
tebygol o fod mewn meysydd sy'n ennill llai o gyllid y Cynghorau Ymchwil (h.y. y rhai y
tu allan i feysydd Gwyddoniaeth, Technoleg, Peirianneg a Mathemateg).

Bydd y fenter newydd, Sér Cymru, a amlygwyd yn strategaeth Gwyddoniaeth i Gymru
Llywodraeth Cymru, i hyrwyddo ymchwil STEM yn cefnogi'r amcan o roi hwb i bynciau

2

Tudalen 23



CCAUC 29/09/13

STEM. Mae Sér Cymru wedi'i dylunio i gryfhau perfformiad yn sylweddol ac mae wedi
bod yn llwyddiannus wrth ddenu ymchwilwyr o'r safon uchaf i Gymru. Fodd bynnag,
mae'n debygol y bydd yn cymryd amser i gyflenwi'r amcanion ac, er ei bod yn cael ei
chroesawu a'i bod yn werthfawr, nid yw ar raddfa a fyddai'n datrys y sefyllfa'n gyfan
gwbl.

Mae targed Strategaeth Gorfforaethol CCAUC yn y maes hwn, sy'n olrhain cynnydd yn
incwm y Cynghorau Ymchwil yn gyffredinol yn erbyn y DU, ac eithrio 'triongl euraid'
Rhydychen, Caergrawnt a Llundain, wedi cael ei fodloni ym mhob blwyddyn o'r
strategaeth gorfforaethol hyd yn hyn. Mewn termau absoliwt, mae incwm y Cynghorau
Ymchwil yng Nghymru wedi gostwng £1.9m (3.6%) rhwng 2010/11 a 2011/12. Ar gyfer
y DU yn gyffredinol, roedd incwm y Cynghorau Ymchwil mewn SAUau wedi gostwng
3.2% rhwng y ddwy flynedd, neu 4% os caiff sefydliadau'r 'triongl euraid' eu heithrio.

Mae ein cyllid wedi hyrwyddo cydweithrediadau ymchwil a datblygiadau gwasanaethau
a rennir sydd wedi gwella perfformiad ymchwil ac annog arbedion effeithlonrwydd.
Mae rhagor o wybodaeth ar gael ar ein gwefan yn http://www.hefcw.ac.uk. Ymhlith yr
enghreifftiau o gydweithrediadau ymchwil a gyllidir gan CCAUC mae Partneriaeth
Ymchwil a Menter Aberystwyth a Bangor (http://www.aberbangorpartnership.ac.uk);
Sefydliad Niwrowyddoniaeth Wybyddol Cymru (www.wicn.ac.uk); Sefydliad Ymchwil
Carbon Isel (www.lcri.org.uk); Sefydliad Ymchwil, Data a Methodoleg Gymdeithasol ac
Economaidd Cymru (www.wiserd.ac.uk); a Chonsortiwm Newid Hinsawdd Cymru
(http://www.c3wales.org).

Ym mha feysydd mae SAUau Cymru'n cydweithredu'n liwyddiannus i wneud
cais am gyllid ymchwil, a sut y gellid gwneud gwelliannau mewn meysydd eraill
lle mae angen mwy o gydweithrediad i gynyddu incwm ymchwil.

Roedd Partneriaeth Ymchwil a Menter Aberystwyth-Bangor wedi creu ceisiadau
ymchwil llwyddiannus ar y cyd gwerth £26.373 miliwn erbyn mis Chwefror 2013. Roedd
y rhan fwyaf o'r cyllid ymchwil ar y cyd ym meysydd eang y Gwyddorau Biolegol,
Amgylcheddol ac Amaethyddiaeth.

Yn 2013, sefydlodd Prifysgol Caerdydd a thair prifysgol blaenllaw o ran ymchwil yn Ne
Orllewin Lloegr - Bryste, Caerwysg a Chaerfaddon - bartneriaeth Great \Western Four
(G4W). Bydd cysylltu Caerdydd yn y ffordd hon gyda thair prifysgol arall sy'n arwain
ym maes ymchwil yn creu mas gritigol o ragoriaeth ymchwil, a bydd arbenigedd
ymchwil cyfunol y pedwar sefydliad yn sicrhau bod Caerdydd - a Chymru - ar y blaen
wrth sicrhau incwm ymchwil.

Mae tri Rhwydwaith Ymchwil Cenedlaethol newydd sy'n seiliedig ar bynciau yn cael eu
sefydlu yng Nghymru gan Lywodraeth Cymru drwy ei rhaglen Sér Cymru (wedi'i
chydariannu gan CCAUC), a bydd eu hamcanion yn cynnwys cael incwm
cydweithredol yn benodol. Y Rhwydweithiau hyn yw: Rhwydwaith Ymchwil
Cenedlaethol mewn Deunyddiau a Pheirianneg Ddatblygedig; Rhwydwaith Ymchwil
Cenedlaethol mewn Carbon Isel, Ynni a'r Amgylchedd; a Rhwydwaith Ymchwil
Cenedlaethol mewn Gwyddorau bywyd ac lechyd.

Yn ogystal, mae CCAUC yn cyllido Crwsibl Cymru, sef rhaglen o ddatblygiad
proffesiynol ac arweinyddiaeth i ymchwilwyr addawol sydd a ffocws penodol ar
hyrwyddo dull cydweithredol a rhyngddisgyblaethol i ymchwil.

3

Tudalen 24



CCAUC 29/09/13

Cefnogaeth ac incwm ffioedd dysgu

5.

Beth fu effaith ariannol y polisi ffioedd dysgu newydd, a gyflwynwyd ym
mlwyddyn academaidd 2012/13, sy'n caniatau i SAUau godi hyd at £9k y
flwyddyn am gyrsiau AU? Pa effeithiau ariannol mae'r polisi hwn yn debygol o'u
cael yn y dyfodol?

Mae'r newid i'r drefn ffioedd a chyllido newydd yn golygu bod CCAUC wedi rhoi'r gorau
i ddarparu cymorth cyllido addysgu i fyfyrwyr gartref/UE sy'n astudio yn SAUau Cymru,
a bellach yn darparu cymorth grant ffioedd i bob myfyriwr israddedig llawn amser a
myfyriwr TAR sy'n hanu o Gymru, lle bynnag y byddant yn astudio yn y DU, ac
israddedigion llawn amser a myfyrwyr TAR sy'n hanu o'r UE sy'n astudio yng
Nghymru. Mae hyn yn golygu bod rhan y fwyaf o gyllideb CCAUC yn cael ei gwario ar
grantiau ffioedd dysgu ar gyfer myfyrwyr israddedig llawn amser a TAR (a delir i
sefydliadau ar draws y DU drwy'r Cwmni Benthyciadau i Fyfyrwyr), gyda llai ar &l i'w
buddsoddi yn y blaenoriaethau polisi eraill (e.e. ymchwil, cyfrwng Cymraeg ac ehangu
mynediad yn ogystal & myfyrwyr rhan amser a myfyrwyr sy'n parhau).

Cyn cadarnhau recriwtio ar gyfer 2013/14, ein hamcangyfrifiad o daliadau grantiau
ffioedd i SAUau Cymru oedd £117m. Yn ogystal, yn seiliedig ar ddata Llywodraeth
Cymru, gwnaethom amcangyfrif, mai'r taliadau grantiau ffioedd i ddarparwyr addysg
uwch yng ngweddill y DU oedd oddeutu £50m. Mae'r ffigurau diweddaraf yn dangos y
bu cynnydd o 3% yn nifer yr ymgeiswyr sy'n hanu o Gymru a gafodd eu derbyn i
sefydliadau yn Lloegr o gymharu & 2012/13 a gostyngiad o 1% yn nifer yr ymgeiswyr
sy'n hanu o Gymru a gafodd eu derbyn gan sefydliadau Cymru, sef cynnydd
cyffredinol o 90 myfyriwr sy'n hanu o Gymru i SAUau y DU.

Yn ogystal, mae sefydliadau Cymru'n denu incwm ffioedd yn sgil ymgeiswyr o weddill y
DU (y tu allan i Gymru). Mae'r ffigurau diweddaraf yn dangos 10,320 o ymgeiswyr a
dderbyniwyd sy'n hanu o Loegr, cynnydd o 1,140 neu 12% i gymharu & 2012/13. Ein
hamcangyfrifiad o'r incwm i SAUau Cymru sy'n gysylitiedig & chofrestriadau o weddill y
DU sy'n uwch na £3,575, ar gyfer 2013/14 oedd £87m.

O 2014/15 mae ein modelu'n dangos mai'r cymorth grant ffioedd sy'n daladwy i
sefydliadau Cymru fydd oddeutu £157m, gydag oddeutu £68m yn cael ei dalu mewn
grantiau ffioedd i ddarparwyr addysg uwch yng ngweddill y DU, y tu allan i Gymru, yn
seiliedig ar ddata Llywodraeth Cymru." Mae'r cyllid hwn yn dilyn myfyrwyr sy'n hanu o
Gymru y tu allan i'r DU. Nid oes gennym ddull o reoli lefel yr ymrwymiad cyllid hwn, yn
bwysicach fyth, nid oes dull ar gael i sicrhau bod yr arian hwn yn cyflawni
blaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae gwybodaeth bellach am fanylion ein dyraniadau cyllido ar gyfer 2013/14, yn
ogystal a'r broses o gyfrifo'r gyllideb a thybiaethau'r grantiau ffioedd sy'n gysylltiedig
a'n cymorth grant gan Lywodraeth Cymru o £382.284m yn 2013-14, ar gael yn
Nyraniadau Cyllido CCAUC 2013/14

Mewn cymhariaeth a gweithredu'r drefn newydd yn Lloegr, mae'r polisi ffioedd dysgu
newydd yng Nghymru'n darparu cymorth i fyfyrwyr, drwy ddarparu grant ffioedd, a
fyddent fel arall (yng nghyd-destun Lloegr, lle mae myfyrwyr yn trefnu benthyciadau)
yn cefnogi SAUau. Er bod y polisi newydd yn darparu mwy o incwm i holl ddarparwyr

' Mae'r amcangyfrifon hyn yn cael eu rhoi i ddangos yr effaith gyffredinol ar y tair carfan yn y cynllun newydd.

4

Tudalen 25



CCAUC 29/09/13

AU y DU, nid yw'r lefelau cyllido a ddyrennir gan y Cynghorau Cyllido sydd ar gael i
SAUau yng Nghymru mor uchel a'r rhai yn Lloegr.

A yw'r polisi ffioedd dysgu newydd yn creu lefel uwch neu is o ansicrwydd
ariannol i SAUau? Esboniwch eich ateb.

O dan y polisi ffioedd dysgu newydd, mae'r cyllid yn dilyn y myfyriwr TAR/ israddedig
llawn-amser. Golyga hyn bod cyfran yn fwy o incwm y sefydliad yn dibynnu ar ddewis
y myfyriwr, sy'n creu marchnad ar gyfer y myfyrwyr hynny fel ‘cwsmeriaid' AU. Ceir
potensial i sefydliadau gynhyrchu incwm uwch gyda'r ffioedd uwch hyn, i'r rhai a all
ddenu myfyrwyr. Fodd bynnag, yn gyffredinol, mae'r math hwn o incwm yn ffrwd llai
sicr o gyllid o gymharu a'r drefn flaenorol a oedd yn cynnwys cynnig mwy cytbwys o
ffioedd is a chyllid CCAUC, sy'n golygu bod cynllunio'n anoddach. Er bod recriwtio
cyffredinol yn llywio dyraniadau sefydliadol, roedd cyllid CCAUC hefyd yn gallu darparu
lefel sefydlog o gyllid (yn erbyn ffactorau amrywiol a ddyluniwyd i gefnogi SAUau i
gyflawni blaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru) a oedd yn darparu cyllid parhaus o
flwyddyn i flwyddyn ac yn llyfnhau amrywiadau.

Beth fu goblygiadau ariannol grant ffioedd dysgu Llywodraeth Cymru, a beth
fydd y goblygiadau ariannol tebygol yn y dyfodol?

Mae ein modelu'n dangos y bydd y drefn gyfredol yn parhau i'w gwneud yn ofynnol i
fwy na 60% o gyllideb CCAUC gael ei gwario ar grantiau ffioedd dysgu i israddedigion
amser-llawn a myfyrwyr TAR. O fewn hynny, bydd bron i 20% o gyfanswm ein cyllideb
yn cael ei gwario i gefnogi myfyrwyr sy'n hanu o Gymru sy'n astudio yn rhywle arall yn
y DU (gweler y ffigurau uchod).

Y gofyniad i fodloni costau'r grant ffioedd dysgu yw'r gofyniad cyntaf ar gyllideb
CCAUC erbyn hyn. Mae hyn wedi golygu y bu'n rhaid i ni leihau nifer o linellau cyllid
yn sylweddol, neu eu tynnu'n él yn llwyr, a oedd yn targedu cymorth i feysydd penodol
o bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru'n flaenorol. Ymhlith y llinellau cyllid a dynnwyd yn 6l mae:
Cronfa Arloesedd ac Ymgysyllitu CCAUC (£8m y flwyddyn yn flaenorol) a fu'n gymorth i
brifysgolion ddatblygu a masnacheiddio'u hymchwil er budd ehangach yr economi a'r
gymdeithas; cymorth i brifysgolion a'u gweithgareddau ehangu mynediad (tua £5.7m)
a'r premiwm ehangu mynediad (£9.9m) yn 2011/12; a chymorth ar gyfer costau
ychwanegol darpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg (premiwm cyfrwng Cymraeg tua £1.5m yn
2011/12).

A yw'r drefn cyllido gyfredol yn rhoi cymorth ariannol effeithiol i fyfyrwyr o'r
cartrefi incwm isaf ac ai dyma'r ffordd fwyaf cost effeithiol o gefnogi'r garfan hon
o fyfyrwyr yn ariannol?

Mae grant ffioedd CCAUC yn daladwy ar ran pob israddedig llawn-amser/TAR o'r UE a
Chymru mewn SAUau yng Nghymru a phob myfyriwr sy'n hanu o Gymru sy'n mynychu
SAUau yng ngweddill y DU. Ni wahaniaethir yn 6l incwm cartrefi.

Mae israddedigion amser-llawn/myfyrwyr TAR sy'n hanu o Gymru o'r cartrefi incwm
isaf (gan ddefnyddio amddifadedd mewn ardaloedd Cymunedau yn Gyntaf fel procsi)
yn llai tebygol o adael Cymru i astudio addysg uwch. Er bod 34% o fyfyrwyr newydd
sy'n hanu o Gymru yn mynd i astudio y tu allan i Gymru; mae oddeutu 19% o fyfyrwyr

5

Tudalen 26



CCAUC 29/09/13

newydd sy'n hanu o Gymru sy'n dod o ardaloedd Cymunedau yn Gyntaf yn astudio y
tu allan i Gymru. [ffynhonnell: HESA 2011/12]

9. Beth yw'r goblygiadau ariannol i Gymru roi cymhorthdal i fyfyrwyr Cymru sy'n
astudio mewn SAUau y tu allan i Gymru?

Mae ein modelu'n awgrymu y bydd oddeutu 20% o gyfanswm ein cyllideb yn cael ei
gwario i gefnogi myfyrwyr sy'n hanu o Gymru sy'n astudio yn rhywle arall yn y DU,
gyda'r rhan fwyaf o'r buddsoddiad hwnnw'n cael ei wneud yn Lloegr. Mae'r modelu
hwn yn amodol ar rywfaint o0 amrywiad, nid lleiaf am nad oes gennym ffordd o reoli
nifer y myfyrwyr sy'n hanu o Gymru sy'n dewis astudio yn rhywle arall yn y DU, na
chostau'r ffioedd dysgu cysylltiedig, fel y nodwyd uchod. Mae'r grantiau ffioedd yn
gwneud myfyrwyr o Gymru yn benodol o ddeniadol i sefydliadau Lloegr y mae disgwyl
iddynt fodloni targedau ehangu cyfranogiad ac sydd & hawl i recriwtio myfyrwyr sy'n
ennill graddau Safon Uwch ABB neu'n uwch heb unrhyw gyfyngiad. Nid yw'r
gefnogaeth hon i ddinasyddion Cymru wedi'i thargedu yn 6l anghenion ariannol ac
mae'n golygu buddsoddi yn y seilwaith addysg uwch yn rhywle arall yn y DU ar draul
buddsoddiad tebyg yn system Cymru. Mae hefyd yn golygu bod effeithiau lluosydd
economaidd buddsoddiad mewn addysg uwch yng Nghymru'n cael eu lleihau.

10. Beth yw goblygiadau ariannol pynciau drutach (ee meddygaeth a pheirianneg)
yn cael eu cyllido o dan y drefn ffioedd newydd o ystyried bod rhai o'r cyrsiau'n
costio mwy na'r uchafswm o £9k y flwyddyn i SAUau eu cyflenwi?

Ar hyn o bryd, bu'n bosibl i ni dalu premiwm o ran y pynciau blaenoriaeth a'r pynciau
drutach sydd, yn hanesyddol, wedi denu mwy na £9k fesul myfyriwr mewn ffioedd a
chyllid. Gan gydnabod yr anawsterau parhaus i sefydliadau sy'n darparu pynciau a
oedd yn denu cyllid o fwy na £9k fesul myfyriwr mewn ffioedd a chyllid yn flaenorol,
rydym yn ceisio cynnal premiwm pynciau drud (sy'n cwmpasu meddygaeth glinigol a
deintyddiaeth a darpariaeth conservatoire), fodd bynnag, mae ein capasiti i gynnal y
cymorth hwn o dan bwysau.

1. Pa mor bwysig yw'r llifincwm i SAUau Cymru o ffioedd dysgu a dderbynnir gan
fyfyrwyr sy'n hanu o'r tu allan i Gymru yn cynnwys gweddill y DU, myfyrwyr
Ewropeaidd a myfyrwyr dramor?

Mae'r rhagolygon ar gyfer 2012/13 yn nodi bod ffioedd amcangyfrifiedig o'r rhai sy'n
hanu o weddill y DU ac Ewrop nad yw'n UE, yn ogystal & myfyrwyr tramor yn cynnwys
oddeutu 23% o gyfanswm incwm SAUau Cymru neu 52% o gyfanswm yr incwm
ffioedd yn 2012/13 (yn seiliedig ar ragolygon a ddarparwyd gan SAUau Cymru ar 31
Gorffennaf 2013). Bydd cyfran incwm SAUau o ffioedd yn cynyddu mewn
blynyddoedd dilynol a bydd cyfran incwm grantiau'r Cyngor Ymchwil yn lleihau. Felly,
mae'r llif incwm ffioedd gan fyfyrwyr sy'n hanu o'r tu allan i Gymru hefyd yn debygol o
gynyddu os yw'r patrymau recriwtio cyfredol yn cael eu cynnal.

Incwm arall a materion ariannol

12. Pa gyfleoedd sydd gan SAUau i gynyddu incwm yn sgil recriwtio myfyrwyr
ychwanegol?

Tudalen 27



13.

CCAUC 29/09/13

Er ein bod wedi sefydlu uchafswm o grantiau ffioedd dysgu y byddwn yn talu i bob
sefydliad yng Nghymru, nid oes cap ar nifer yr israddedigion llawn amser a myfyrwyr
TAR y gall pob sefydliadau eu recriwtio. Felly, byddai incwm ychwanegol, sy'n uwch
na'r hyn sy'n cael ei greu drwy grantiau ffioedd, yn dod yn sgil recriwtio israddedigion
llawn amser a myfyrwyr TAR nad ydynt yn hanu o Gymru (a'r UE), yn cynnwys
myfyrwyr tramor. Gallent hefyd ddenu incwm ychwanegol yn sgil recriwtio mwy o
fyfyrwyr rhan-amser a myfyrwyr ol-raddedig a addysgir.

Pa gynnydd a wneir mewn perthynas a dangosydd Rhaglen Lywodraethu
Llywodraeth Cymru y bydd gan 'o leiaf 75% o SAUau Cymru incwm blynyddol
sy'n fwy na'r canolrif ar gyfer y DU', a sut y gellir gwella hyn yn y dyfodol.

Mae'r dangosydd hwn yn debyg i'r hyn a geir yn Strategaeth Gorfforaethol CCAUC
2010-13, a nodwyd eto yn 2013-16 sef. ‘Bydd gan o leiaf 75% o sefydliadau addysg
uwch Cymru incwm blynyddol sy’n fwy na’r canolrif ar gyfer y DU, ac ni fydd unrhyw
sefydliad yn y chwartel isaf erbyn 2015/16. Wrth adrodd ar gyfer y cyfnod 2010-13,
gwnaethom nodi 'Mae'r maes hwn o'n strategaeth gorfforaethol yn ymwneud a
blaenoriaeth allweddol y Gweinidog i weld prifysgolion cryfach a mwy cynaliadwy, o
faint sy'n eu galluogi i gystadlu'n genedlaethol ac yn rhyngwladol. Mae ein targed wedi
canolbwyntio ar brifysgolion yn rhoi eu hunain yn y sefyllfa gorau i gystadlu drwy
gyfuno, er mwyn sicrhau bod eu hincwm yn uwch na chanolrif y DU. Er ei bod yn
annhebygol y bydd y targed hwn yn cael ei gyflawni, rydym wedi gweld tri uniad yn
ystod y cyfnod [2010-13] (Prifysgol Cymru, Llanbedr Pont Steffan, a Choleg Prifysgol y
Drindod Caerfyrddin; Prifysgol Fetropolitan Abertawe a Phrifysgol Cymru y Drindod
Dewi Sant a Phrifysgol Cymru, Casnewydd a Phrifysgol Morgannwg).

Ers mis Ebrill 2013, gwelwyd uniad pellach wedi digwydd ac mae uniad hefyd wedi'i
drefnu yn Ne Orllewin Cymru, rhwng Prifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant a dau
Sefydliad Addysg Bellach arall, fel rhan o ddatblygiadau'r brifysgol sector deuol. Yn
dilyn yr uniadau cyfredol a chan dybio y bydd prifysgolion Bangor ac Aberystwyth yn
sicrhau incwm ar lefel sy'n uwch na chanolrif y DU, rydym yn cyfrif y bydd pum
prifysgol o blith wyth wedi cael trosiant sy'n fwy na chanolrif y DU (62.5%). Rydym o'r
farn efallai na fydd yn bosibl cyflawni targed y Strategaeth Gorfforaethol fel y mae ar
hyn o bryd, heb ail-gyflunio pellach.

Tudalen 28



' Eitem 3

Response to the
Finance Committee’s
inquiry into Higher

Education Funding in
Wales

n u ' wales

n of students

Tudalen 29



Overview

The National Union of Students (NUS) Wales welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Finance
Committee’s inquiry into Higher Education Funding in Wales. NUS Wales is a confederation of
students’ unions representing more than 300,000 students in the nation. As the only representative
voice for students in Wales, NUS Wales represents students from all affiliated students’ unions in
both HE and FE sectors, this includes 8 HE institutions and all Welsh FE Colleges.

NUS Wales exists to promote, defend and extend the rights of students and develop and champion
strong students’ unions. We fight barriers to education; empower students to shape both a quality
learning experience and the world around them; as well as supporting influential, democratic and
well-resourced students’ unions.

As well as campaigning on behalf of our members, NUS Wales provides a range of training to
students’ unions including training for full-time offices, part-time officers and staff. We provide
support to students’ unions to ensure they are able to engage positively with the latest policy
developments that affect them.

We provide resources and staff support to students’ unions to help strengthen them and enable
them to become ever-more effective in their operation. We work with partners across Wales
including DfES, HEFCW, HEA and QAA to develop efficient and productive representation structures
for students.

In further education, NUS Wales has engaged and trained student governors in every single Welsh
FE College and trained class representatives from the majority of FE Colleges. Furthermore, we are
developing a National Society of Apprentices to provide representation for those who study in this
setting; this endeavour has the backing of the Welsh Government.

The core values of NUS Wales are democracy, equality and collectivism. We believe that student
organisations should be student-led and that education is a benefit to the individual and to society.

NUS Wales would be very keen to expand upon the details of this response in an oral
evidence session with the committee where we hope that the impact of fees and student
funding, our research into these issues, and our priorities of widening access and flexible
learning, could be explored further.

Tudalen 30



Tuition fee income and support

1. What has been the financial effect of the new tuition fee policy, introduced in the
2012/13 academic year, which allows Higher Education Institutions to charge
students up to £9,000 per annum for HE courses? What future financial effect is
this policy likely to have?

For students and students’ unions, there have been a number of financial effects of
the new tuition fee policy, many of them not directly related to tuition fees. The
introduction of fee plans, in an effort to lever the funding that is now following the
student rather than being allocated through HEFCW, has meant that students’
unions have had to become adept at negotiating with their institutions to ensure
that student priorities are funded through the fee plan. Those providers that have
a significant amount of part-time provision have also seen their income from part-
time provision negatively impacted by the new funding as there has been a net
transfer of resource from part-time to full-time study.

We believe that the future financial effect of this policy would be an increasing
focus of finance and resource around one mode of study in Wales. We feel this
would have a detrimental effect on the skills agenda in Wales by hampering the
provision of flexible learning opportunities, for example for those who wish to
study while they work or retrain.

2. Does the new tuition fee policy create a greater or lesser level of financial
uncertainty for Higher Education Institutions? Please explain your answer.

We believe that the tuition fee policy does create a greater level of financial
uncertainty for higher education institutions as a significant amount of higher
education funding is now student-led rather than allocated. This, coupled with the
increasing importance of cross-border flow and the potential impact of
Westminster policies such as ABB recruitment, makes it difficult for institutions to
predict what their future finances will be.

From a wider perspective, the delay in an introduction of an updated funding
regime for part-time students means that there is a considerable amount of
uncertainty over the current financial sustainability of flexible and part-time
provision. We welcome the planned introduction of part-time loans in 2014/15, but
it is worth noting that this policy can only be seen as a temporary measure as it
does nothing to counteract the way that providers are not currently incentivised to
prioritise or promote part-time provision.

We also feel that it is important to recognise that the tuition fee policy does not
just create uncertainty for higher education institutions but also for further
education institutions. In many ways FEIs are at the forefront of widening access,
often having geographically accessible provision and smaller class sizes. Further
education institutions also have a higher proportion of part-time learners and as
such are disproportionately affected by the way that part-time funding was not
taken into account in the development of the current tuition fee policy.

The uncertainty of the current higher education funding environment has also
impacted students’ unions in Wales with the elected officers of our members
highlighting recruitment and university budgets as being areas of notable concern
at their institutions. This has impacted their own efforts to secure the

Tudalen 31



improvement of the student learning experience and other student opportunities at
their institutions.

What has been, and is likely to be in the future, the financial implications of the
Welsh Government’s tuition fee grant?

Now that funding follows the student, including cross-border, there has been
difficulty in ensuring that policy priorities are funded and implemented as there is
little resource left with which HEFCW can centrally fund projects and initiatives,
including those associated with improving the student experience and widening
access. This has already been demonstrated through reductions to various funding
lines and the predicted further reductions.

The expectation is that fee plans provide a means by which institutions can be
directed to fund these activities with their additional fee income, but the
effectiveness of this measure is currently unknown. It is also worth considering
that, although early indications suggest there have been some really positive
developments directly attributable to fee plans?, there is now a significant
challenge in utilising funding to encourage joined up, strategic developments
across the sector. Also challenging is that institutions’ fee plans are not, currently,
underpinned with any effective means of redress by HEFCW should institutions fail
to adhere to their targets and spending commitments?.

We are also very concerned about the impact that the tuition fee grant and the
current fee policy has on part-time provision. The current fee policy simply does
not take part-time provision into account. There are some indirect positive aspects
to this, for example whereas English part-time students pay £9k fees, Welsh part-
time students are not paying higher fees. However, it also means that there is no
incentive for higher education providers to prioritise part-time provision given that
part-time provision is not as lucrative.

HEFCW has not only missed its target around part-time student numbers but that
the number of part-time students in Wales has actually dropped>. This suggests
Wales is not effectively providing flexible learning opportunities and that
consideration must be given to how to ensure we are meeting the needs of all
learners in Wales.

Does the current funding regime provide effective financial support to students
from the lowest income households and is this the most cost effective way of
financially supporting this cohort of students?

We do not believe that the current funding regime provides effective financial
support to students from the lowest income households. Recent NUS research has
found that a third of students have considered leaving their course because of
financial worries®. If we want to provide effective financial support to students
from the lowest income households, it is important to not only consider fee

! For example, Bangor University has agreed to use fee plan income to make all clubs and societies
at Bangor free to access for all students.

2 The only option currently available to HEFCW would be to withdraw a fee plan, this is seen as a
‘3nuc|ear option’

www.hefcw.ac.uk/documents/publications/circulars/circulars 2013/W13%2012HE%20Co

nsultation%20Developing%20the%20HEFCW%20part%20time%20HE%20Action%20Plan

http://www.poundinyourpocket.org.uk/downloads/PIYP Summary Report.pdf

Tudalen 32



support (and indeed, there is evidence to suggest that tuition fees have a negative
impact on participation®) but also how a student is enabled to fund living costs.

The current fee policy has created a funding system that leaves limited room for
centrally targeting policy priorities through funding, supporting flexible provision or
improving maintenance support for students. Therefore, we are concerned that the
current funding policy is not one that is be well-placed to meet the needs of all
Welsh students.

5. What are the financial implications for Wales of subsidising Welsh students who
study in Higher Education Institutions outside of Wales?

We recognise that there are of course financial implications for Welsh institutions
and the Welsh economy of over £50million leaving Wales through the tuition fee
grant, and that this provides an additional pressure on HEFCW's funding lines. We
also note that there has been a steady downward trend in the proportion of Welsh
students choosing to study in Wales. This is a cause of concern as we believe there
is a need to encourage talented Welsh graduates to live in Wales and contribute to
the Welsh economy and civic society.

However, higher education funding should be principally concerned with meeting
the needs of Welsh students and providing them with the opportunities that they
need. We are concerned that limiting the fee grant to those who study in Wales
could potentially limit the availability of some opportunities, such as access to
subjects not delivered in Wales or institutions with a prominent profile in a
particular area, to those students who are willing to take on the additional debt
burden.

Limiting the fee grant to students who study in Wales could also potentially lead to
there being further caps on Welsh student numbers while institutions were free to
recruit an almost unlimited number of English students, thus creating a two-tiered
system. In many ways, a less pronounced version of this structure is already in
place with the fee grant cap that does effectively limit how many Welsh students
universities can recruit. A similar competition for places amongst home students
already takes place in Scotland.

We feel strongly that the decision to restrict the current fee policy to students
studying in Wales is not a long-term solution but rather a temporary fix for the
current policy. If we truly want to meet the needs of Welsh students and the
Welsh economy, the entire package needs to be reviewed including, but not
limited to, maintenance support and other modes of study such as part-time.

6. How important is the income stream to Welsh Higher Education Institutions from
tuition fees received from students domiciled outside Wales including the rest of
the UK, European students and overseas students?

The income streams provided by students domiciled outside Wales are becoming
increasingly important to Welsh higher education institutions. It is reassuring that
amount of English students studying in Wales has been steadily increasing over
the past few years. We firmly believe that a diverse student body brings a great
range of benefits to Wales and helps promote Welsh higher education across the
UK and wider.

> http://www.ifs.org.uk/wps/wp1117.pdf

Tudalen 33



That said, and in reference to our points in the previous question, we must ensure
that students are never viewed as ‘cash-cows’ and are given the same
opportunities, access and services as Welsh-domiciled students. Similarly, we must
avoid a potentially two-tier recruitment system whereby institutions actively

recruit lucrative students domiciled outside Wales to the detriment of important
priorities such as widening access.

Tudalen 34



g wales
Tudalen 35




Eitem 4

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid

- _ Cynulliad
Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd Eerdlasttl
Cymru
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 13 Tachwedd 2013 ,
National
Assembly for
Amser: 09:00 - 12:05 Wales

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: i/

<insert link here>

Cofnodion Cryno:

Aelodau’r Cynulliad:

Jocelyn Davies (Cadeirydd)
Peter Black

Christine Chapman

Paul Davies

Mike Hedges

Ann Jones

Julie Morgan

Simon Thomas

Tystion:

David Corner, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Mike Davies, Prifysgol Caerdydd

Ann Marie Harkin, Cyfarwyddwr Grwp - Adnoddau, Swyddfa
Archwilio Cymru

Terry Jones, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Andrew Parry, Prifysgol Glyndwr

Yr Athro Patricia Price, Prifysgol Caerdydd

Yr Athro Michael Scott, Prifysgol Glyndwr

Huw Vaughan Thomas, Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru,
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Kevin Thomas, Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cynorthwyol,
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Paul Whiting, Prifysgol Glyndwr

Tudalen 36



Meriel Singleton (Ail Clerc)
Claire Griffiths (Dirprwy Glerc)

Staff y Pwyllgor:

TRAWSGRIFIAD
Gweld trawsgrifiad o’r cyfarfod.

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon
1.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau a’r cyhoedd i’r cyfarfod.

2 Adroddiad Blynyddol a Chyfrifon Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru 2012-

2013: Tystiolaeth gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
2.1 Holodd y Pwyllgor Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru ynghylch ei Adroddiad Blynyddol
a Chyfrifon ar gyfer 2012-13.

3 Craffu ar Amcangyfrif Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru ar gyfer 2014-15
3.1 Holodd y Pwyllgor Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru ynghylch ei Amcangyfrifon ar
gyfer 2014-15.

3.2 Nododd y Pwyllgor fod yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol yn bwriadu cyflwyno amcangyfrif
ategol ar gyfer 2013-14. Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i ohebu ag ef ynglyn a’r mater hwn.

4 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan Brifysgol Caerdydd a
Phrifysgol Glyndwr

4.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan yr Athro Patricia Price, y Dirprwy Is-Ganghellor,
Profiad y Myfyrwyr a Safonau Academaidd, Prifysgol Caerdydd, Mike Davies,
Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid, Prifysgol Caerdydd, yr Athro Michael Scott, Is-Ganghellor a Phrif
Weithredwr, Prifysgol Glyndwr, Paul Whiting, Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid, Prifysgol Glyndwr ac
Andrew Parry, Pennaeth Cyfathrebu Corfforaethol, Prifysgol Glyndwr, o ran cyllido
addysg uwch.

5 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan y Brifysgol Agored
5.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan Rob Humphreys, Cyfarwyddwr, y Brifysgol
Agored yng Nghymru a Michelle Matheron, Rheolwr Polisi a Materion Cyhoeddus, vy
Brifysgol Agored yng Nghymru, o ran cyllido addysg uwch.

5.2 Cytunodd Rob Humphreys i anfon nodyn i’r Pwyllgor & manylion am bobl ifanc
rhwng 18 a 25 oed sy’n dilyn cyrsiau’r Brifysgol Agored ar hyn o bryd.

Tudalen 37



6 Papurau i’'w nodi
6.1 Nodwyd y papurau.

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o’r

cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol:
7.1 Derbyniwyd y cynnig.

8 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Trafod y dystiolaeth a gafwyd

8.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a gafwyd ar gyfer yr ymchwiliad i gyllido addysg
uwch.

Tudalen 38



Eitem4dai.c

Cenedlaethol

Cymru
Angela Burns AC/AM National

Assembly for
Comisiynydd y Cynulliad Wales

Assembly Commissioner

J%

Jocelyn Davies AM

Chair of the Finance Committee
National Assembly of Wales

TY Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 TNA

24 October 2013

Dear Jocelyn

Thank you for the Committee’s report published 22 October 2013.

| am attaching our response to each of your recommendations.
However, there is an underlying theme in your recommendations that |
would like to address. First and foremost, | would like to reassure the
Committee that the Commission is always happy to provide additional
information to meet the Committee’s requests. Individual
Commissioners would also be perfectly prepared to come and give
evidence to the Committee on our key strategic priorities for ICT and
Official Languages at an appropriate time if you would like them to do
so. However, | hope that your Committee members will recognise that
it is Assembly Commissioners and the staff of the Commission who
are formally responsible, and accountable, under the Government of
Wales Act 2006, for providing the services required for the Assembly’s
purposes.

In support of our commitment to transparency, financial probity,
stewardship and value for money for the service we provide, the
Commission has a comprehensive approach to its governance. This
includes clarity around powers of delegation, accountability and

Bae Caerdydd
Caerdydd
CF99 TNA

Cardiff Bay
Cardiff
CF99 TNA

Ffon « Tel: 029 2089 8598

Ffacs « Fax: 029 2089 8117

Ebost « Email: Carys.Evans@wales.gov.uk

Ysgrifenyddiaeth Comisiwn y Cynulliad/Assembly Commission Secretariat

alen 39

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'’r Saesneg}"\/e welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh




decision-making, and ensuring we have independent advice and
assurance to strengthen and continually improve our approach.

We use independent advisers, our Audit Committee, external and
internal Audit services as well as the internal decision making boards -
Investment Board and Management Board - to check, challenge and
hold us to account. Specifically for projects such as the ICT Future
Service project, there is a Project Delivery and Implementation Team
and Project Board reporting to the Investment Board, Audit Committee
and Commissioners at regular intervals. We have also made use of
external, independent advisers and external and internal audit
assurance at key stages through the project’s life. Specialists within
the organisation (legal, procurement, HR and Finance, for example)
join project boards for key decisions and review, helping to keep
implementation in budget, in scope and delivered to time and quality.

Finally, the Committee asked us about the salary that is paid to
apprentices in the Assembly Commission. | hope that the Committee
will be pleased to hear that we have decided that in the future
apprentices recruited by the Assembly Commission will be paid the
Living Wage.

| reiterate my thanks to you and the members of the Finance
Committee for your scrutiny of our budget and for your support for

the strategic direction that we have taken.

Yours sincerely

Angela Burns

Comisiynydd y Cynulliad
Assembly Commissioner

Tudalen 40




Response to Finance Committee’s report on its scrutiny of the
Draft 2014-15 Budget

14 Official Languages Scheme

Finance Committee recommendation: We recommend that a Member
of the Committee (Paul Davies AM) works closely with the Commission
to scrutinise expenditure and reports back to Finance Committee in
the run up to next year’s budget.

RESPONSE:

Rhodri Glyn Thomas is the Commissioner leading our work on official
languages and he already liaises closely with nominated
representatives from each party group. While we are sure it was not
the Committee’s intention, we would be concerned at any additional
new arrangement that would cut across proper lines of accountability.
Rhodri Glyn Thomas would be happy to give evidence to the
Committee at an appropriate point and we believe that would be a
more appropriate arrangement.

The Commission has an absolute commitment to providing services in
its official languages. The Scheme published in July 2013, sets out our
current services and our aims for the next 12 months. These include
some ambitious targets and annual accountability to the Assembly.
The Commission has several key work streams to deliver our ambition,
our progress in using ICT (Machine Translation), supporting the
learning environment and integrating our approach to the official
languages into all services we deliver. As part of our internal
governance arrangements we produce regular updates on our progress
which we are happy to share with the Finance Committee. Part of this
governance work ensures we highlight changes and risks around
resources and their impact on the Commission’s budget. We plan on a
multiple year horizon and ensure we have flexibility in project plans to
respond to changing risks and demands in meeting our priorities.

& ICT Strategy

Finance Committee recommendation: We recommend that a Member
of the Committee (Mike Hedges AM) works closely with the
Commission to scrutinise expenditure and reports back to Finance
Committee in the run up to next year’s budget.

Tudalen 41




RESPONSE:

Peter Black is the Commissioner leading the work on our ICT strategy
and his practice has always been to welcome discussion with any
Assembly Member. While we are sure it was not the Committee’s
intention, we would be concerned at any additional new arrangement
that would cut across proper lines of accountability. Peter Black would
be happy to give evidence to the Committee on the ICT Strategy at an
appropriate point and we believe that would be a more appropriate
arrangement.

The transition of our ICT services, which brings into the Commission
the services previously contracted out, is a major project for the
Commission so we appreciate the Committee’s concern to see it
successfully delivered. The project’s overarching aim is to put the
Commission in a position to be able to improve the quality, flexibility
and range of services provided to the Assembly, Members, and the
people of Wales over the next five to ten years, without increasing the
annual budgets for ICT service delivery. The project has a
comprehensive governance arrangement that includes specific input
from independent advisors, external audit review in addition to
Commission’s own internal governance structure, all of which give us
the assurances we need that it will be delivered successfully.

We will be adding the detailed information already provided to the
Finance Committee into the Commission’s Final Budget.

3. Engaging with young people

Finance Committee recommendation: We recommend that the
Commission continues to monitor the geographical spread of visitors,
and new schools visiting the Assembly, in line with its aim of giving
every child in Wales the opportunity to visit the Assembly. We also
recommend the Commission reviews the travel subsidy for schools in
North and West Wales, to ensure that cost and distance are not
insurmountable barriers to access.

RESPONSE:

Our education service is already the envy of other parliaments. The
Commission is taking steps to build on this tremendous foundation in
order to raise the awareness of the Assembly’s work among young
people across Wales, and to ensure there are opportunities for young
people to contribute to the future shape of Wales and Welsh
democracy. This is a shift away from primarily aiming to raise

Tudalen 42




awareness and understanding amongst young people through the
national curriculum, to more extensive youth participation and
engagement directly linked to the work of the Assembly itself. We are
therefore currently undertaking a youth engagement consultation,
“Your Assembly - your say, your way”, and will respond to the
outcomes of that consultation early next year. We have also recently
refocused the Education Service and launched a new online education
site. Data is already collected so that we can measure the effectiveness
of the services that we offer to young people and schools, including
visits to the Senedd. We will continue to monitor take-up carefully, and
adjust the arrangements we offer as and when necessary to ensure
that we are meeting the needs of schools in all parts of Wales.

4, Performance Indicators and 5. Transparency vs accessibility.

Finance Committee recommendation: We recommend that where
changes are proposed to the performance indicators which mean that
the previous year or quarter’s figures are no-longer comparable these
should be reported to the Chair of Finance Committee for approval.

Finance Committee recommendation: We recommend that the
Commission considers whether and how it could improve transparency
and offer extra detail about new programmes and emerging risks in
future budgets, while retaining the high level of accessibility in its
budget documents. For our part, Finance Committee will write to the
Commission ahead of next year’s draft budget publication setting out
any more detailed information we feel may be useful to aid the
committee’s scrutiny

RESPONSE:

The Commission is committed to operating in an open and transparent
manner. It is entirely appropriate that our plans and performance are
subject to rigorous scrutiny. Our aim is to provide measurable
evidence of our achievements and all the information necessary to
enable that scrutiny to take place.

The Corporate Performance Report is the first time we have pulled
together this degree of performance information and we welcome the
fact that the Finance Committee recognises that it is an iterative
process which will develop over time. As and when we decide to make
improvements to the report, we will ensure that we provide

Tudalen 43




comparable figures so that it is possible to track the direction of
travel.

Specifically on the recommendations for emerging risks and details for
new/changing programmes, we will ensure these are separately

identified in future budget proposals.

24 October 2013.

Tudalen 44




Eitem 7

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen 45



Eitem 8

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen 57



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan Addysg Uwch Cymru a Chyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru
	FIN(4)-21-13(p2)

	3 Ymchwiliad i Gyllido Addysg Uwch: Tystiolaeth gan Undeb Cenedlaethol y Myfyrwyr
	4 Papurau i™w nodi
	4a Cyllideb Ddrafft Comisiwn y Cynulliad 2014-15: Llythyr gan  Angela Burns AC
	7 Bil Tai (Cymru)
	8 Ymateb Cychwynnol Llywodraeth y DU i Adroddiad Comisiwn Silk Rhan 1

